
   
 

 
 
 

  

 
 
 

 
OPEN SESSION 
AGENDA ITEM O-402 
JUNE 2020 
COMMITTEE OF BAR EXAMINERS 
 
DATE:  June 19, 2020 
 
TO:   Members, Committee of Bar Examiners 
 
FROM:  Natalie Leonard, Principal Program Analyst 
 
SUBJECT:  Action on Notice of Termination of Accreditation – Pacific Coast University 

School of Law  
 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
On April 24, 2020, the Committee of Bar Examiners (Committee) voted to issue a Notice of 
Intent to Terminate Accreditation to Pacific Coast University School of Law (PCU). After that 
meeting, the school requested a hearing pursuant to Rule 4.173. The hearing was conducted in 
open session on May 29, 2020 by a panel of three members of the Committee. Today, taking 
the records as a whole, the Committee will decide whether to proceed with its stated intent to 
terminate the accreditation of Pacific Coast University School of Law effective at the end of the 
current semester on August 20, 2020. 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Accredited law schools must maintain a Minimum, Cumulative Five-Year Bar Passage Rate 
(MPR) of forty percent or more under Accredited Law School Rule 4.160(N) and Guideline 12.1. 
Pacific Coast University School of Law (PCU) has not been in compliance since the MPR 
requirement was first implemented in 2015. In 2015, the school’s MPR was 28.2 percent; in 
2016 and 2017 the requirement was suspended, but the school was advised that the 
requirement would be reinstated and the school should take note because State Bar internal 
estimates suggested that the school’s MPR remained below forty percent; in 2018, the school’s 
MPR was 26.4 percent; in 2019, it was 26.6 percent.  
 



 
 
 

P a g e  2 

The process for acting on noncompliance with the Committee’s Accredited Rules and guidelines 
is set forth in Rule 4.170 et seq. The Committee followed that process by issuing a Notice of 
Noncompliance, receiving the school’s responses describing the initiatives that the school 
planned to implement to improve its MPR, discussing the response at a public meeting of the 
Committee, and receiving public comment. This process was repeated in 2015, 2018, and 2019. 
In October 2019, at Committee request, a three-member panel attended an inspection at which 
the school discussed its noncompliance and plan to address it. 
 
The Committee considered the full record at its meetings in January and April 2020, including 
further verbal public comment received in January, and written public comment received from 
January through April, and voted to issue a Notice of Intent to Terminate the Accreditation of 
PCU based on the school’s long-term, sustained, significant noncompliance, and projected 
future noncompliance.  
 
After a notice is issued, the following process is used. 
 
Prior to the Committee taking final action, a school may request a hearing under Rule 4.173 
before a panel of three Committee members. At the hearing, “[t]he law school has the burden 
of establishing its compliance, if an accredited law school ... with these rules.” (Rule 4.174(C)) 
 
Then, “[f]ollowing a hearing, the Committee will determine whether the accredited law school 
is in compliance ... with these rules. Its decision will be based on the entire record, including 
materials presented at the hearing. The Committee may take any action affecting the law 
school’s ... accreditation that it considers appropriate, including termination of ... 
accreditation.” (Rule 4.175 (A-B)) 
 
When the Committee finds noncompliance, termination of accreditation is generally 
appropriate. Probation may only be selected “[i]f the Committee decides that an accredited law 
school … has not complied with these rules, but has made progress toward compliance.” (Rule 
4.172(B))  
 
Should the Committee plan to proceed with its previously expressed intent to terminate the 
school’s accreditation, “[t]he Committee will terminate accreditation … on a specific date, at 
which time it will also terminate a law school’s degree-granting authority.” (Rule 4.176)  The 
rule further provides that “[u]ntil that date, students attending the law school are deemed 
enrolled at an accredited … law school.”  
 
DISCUSSION 
 
In May, PCU exercised its right under Rule 4.173 to request a hearing before a three-member 
panel of Committee members. At the hearing, the school had the burden of establishing that it 
was in compliance with Rule 4.160(N).  
 
The State Bar held the hearing on May 29, 2020 via Zoom before a three-member panel of the 
following Committee members: Alex Lawrence, Alex Chan, and Paul Kramer. (A transcript of the 
hearing is included as Attachment A) The hearing was open to the public and approximately 
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two dozen members of the public attended. The State Bar allotted three hours for the school’s 
presentation in order to assure a full and fair opportunity to make its presentation to the panel. 
The school was easily able to complete its presentation in the allotted time. The school also 
distributed a packet of exhibits to the panel prior to the hearing that were reviewed by the 
panel members. (Attachment B) 
  
In April, the Committee issued a Notice of Intent to Terminate Accreditation after observing 
that the school’s MPR had not been compliant since 2015, and the school reported MPR values 
in 2018 and 2019 that were lower than the value reported in 2015. A number of graduates and 
faculty spoke out in support of the school at Committee meeting in January and submitted 
written public comments in both January and April. Through the school’s responses, inspection 
and public comment, it explained that it had identified and implemented a series of initiatives 
to improve the pass rate. The Committee noted, however, that these initiatives proved unable 
to overcome the school’s noncompliance. 
 
At the hearing, the school conceded that the school has been out of compliance, was out of 
compliance during the most recent reporting cycle, previewed that its 2020 MPR would be at or 
around 28.2 percent, and projected that the school would be out of compliance until the 2022 
or 2023 MPR reporting cycles.  
 
The school also announced a number of program changes introduced since the Committee last 
met in April. These changes included the appointment of new law school Dean F. Miguel 
Valenti, who will be hiring a number of new staff members. Dean Valenti has experience as a 
law professor and film professor, and he has started or refreshed a number of academic 
programs over the years. He will continue the initiatives that PCU launched in January, as well 
as a range of new initiatives such as consolidating the school’s two track system into one track, 
adding writing opportunities to each year of the curriculum, focusing on faculty development, 
and adding a mentorship program, including offsite tutoring for bar exam repeaters who prefer 
not to study at the law school.  
 
At the hearing, Dean Valenti acknowledged the school’s history of noncompliance since 2015, 
when the school reported an MPR of 28.2. The school’s MPR dipped to 24.4 in 2018 and 26.6 in 
2019, but will, according to the dean, return to 28.2 when the school reports its 2020 MPR by 
the July 1, 2020 deadline. Dean Valenti projected that the school‘s 2021 MPR would also be 
noncompliant, but projected it would increase to thirty-seven percent when the school reports 
on July 1, 2021 and reach full compliance by the July 1, 2022 reporting date or July 1, 2023 
reporting date. 
 
The school’s projection that its MPR will rise to thirty-seven percent in 2021 assumes that 
seventeen of the school’s graduates will need to pass one of the next two bar examinations. 
State Bar internal data show that this has not happened at the school since the MPR was first 
reported in 2015. During the most recent two examinations, for example, a total of five PCU 
graduates passed one of those two bar examinations. 
 
In lieu of termination of accreditation, the Dean asked the Committee to impose a probationary 
period through Spring 2021, despite the expectation that the school would still be out of 
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compliance at the end of such probationary period. The Dean explained that he chose that date 
because  after the school’s last periodic inspection in 2016, the school’s next compliance 
inspection was set for Spring 2021; such recommendations, however, are always subject to the 
possibility that the Committee may request an inspection prior to that date. He further 
indicated that if the school did not show major improvement by the time it reported its 2021 
MPR, he would “pull the plug,” suggesting that the school would apply for registered, 
unaccredited status upon such occurrence. 
 
After the hearing concluded, a transcript was prepared, and staff spoke with the panel 
members individually, incorporating their input individually when preparing this memorandum 
and recommending termination of accreditation. 
 
The Committee monitors schools’ compliance with the Rules for Accredited Law Schools, 
including the MPR. Any school that earns accreditation must continue to demonstrate 
compliance in order to maintain accreditation. Termination of accreditation is the appropriate 
remedy for noncompliance when a school has not shown progress toward compliance. (Rule 
4.172) Here, the school’s 2015 MPR was 28.2 percent, dropped further to 24.4 percent in 2018, 
and remained low, at 26.6 percent, in 2019. It is projected to return to the 2015 level of 28.2 
percent in the upcoming 2020 report, despite the implementation of a wide range of bar 
preparation initiatives and ongoing faculty, student, and alumni support. While the new Dean 
has not had the opportunity to implement his plan, and it is hoped that the plan greatly 
increases the bar passage rate for the school’s graduates, the record is viewed as a whole over 
time. The school‘s pattern of noncompliance over an extended period of years and into future 
years suggests that probation is not an appropriate option, since meaningful improvement has 
not been shown. 
 
If the Committee decides to act on its previously expressed intent to terminate accreditation 
and degree-granting authority, PCU may apply to register as an unaccredited law school and 
operate subject to those rules. The rules for unaccredited law schools are more relaxed and do 
not include an MPR requirement. If the school demonstrates compliance with the Unaccredited 
Law School Rules and Guidelines and earns registration from the Committee at a future 
meeting, the school will then be able to operate as an unaccredited law school, so long as it 
maintains that compliance. Prior to its accreditation, the school operated as a registered, 
unaccredited law school for many years. 
 
FISCAL/PERSONNEL IMPACT 
 
None 
 
AMENDMENTS TO RULES OF THE STATE BAR 
 
None 
 
AMENDMENTS TO BOARD OF TRUSTEES POLICY MANUAL  
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None 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN GOALS & OBJECTIVES 
 
Goal: None - core business operations 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
It is recommended that the Committee of Bar Examiners proceed with its previously stated 
intent to terminate the accreditation of Pacific Coast University School of Law based on the 
school’s long-term noncompliance with Rule 4.160(N) and Guidelines 12.1. The school has been 
out of compliance since 2015, and that compliance is projected to extend for at least two to 
three years into the future. It is recommended that the school’s accreditation and degree 
granting authority be terminated effective August 20, 2020, at the conclusion of the current 
semester. 
 
It is hoped that the school would take all reasonable steps to allow its students to fully 
complete the semester, and that the school would respond promptly to requests for 
documents such as transcripts.  
 
PROPOSED MOTION 
 
Should the Committee of Bar Examiners agree with the staff recommendation, the following 
motion should be made: 
 

MOVE, that the Committee of Bar Examiners finds that Pacific Coast University 
School of Law has not demonstrated compliance with Rule 4.160(N) and 
Guideline 12.1, and its long-term noncompliance continuing into the future 
warrants termination of accreditation; that the Committee terminates the 
accreditation and degree granting authority of Pacific Coast University School 
effective August 20, 2020, pursuant to Rule 4.176; and that a Notice of 
Termination of Accreditation be transmitted to the school. 
 

 
ATTACHMENT(S) LIST 
 

A. Transcript of Hearing on Pacific Coast University School of Law’s Noncompliance – May 
29, 2020 

B. Pacific Coast University School of Law’s Hearing Exhibits 
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     A P P E A R A N C E S


 THE PANEL:


 Alex Lawrence, Committee Member & Educational Standards

    Chair


 Alex Chan, Committee Member


 Paul Kramer, Committee Member


 --o0o-­

 Miguel Valenti, Dean of Pacific Coast University
 
School of Law


 Sonia Gonzales, Executive Director Pacific Coast

     University School of Law
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     REMOTE VIA ZOOM; FRIDAY, MAY 29, 2020


 1:14 P.M.


  --o0o-­

   MR. LAWRENCE:  Thank you, Natalie.


   Good afternoon, everyone.  Today's hearing has


 been requested by Pacific Coast University School of Law


 pursuant to Accredited Law School Rule 4.173. This


 hearing is being recorded by a court reporter.  So


 please be sure to speak slowly and clearly and be


 prepared to repeat a statement if asked to do so.


   Please note that public comment is not being


 taken, because this is a hearing and is being conducted


 on the topic of a prior agenda item for which extensive


 oral and written public comment was taken at a prior


 Committee Bar Examiners meeting.


   This hearing is nevertheless open to the public.


 And I would like to welcome any members of the public


 who are on the line as observers.


   The members of the panel and the school's


 representatives can make themselves visible on camera


 and can make comments during their presentation.  All


 others have been muted, and camera view is not available


 whether you called in via telephone or accessed the Web


 link.


   This hearing was requested in response to the
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 Committee's issuance of a Notice of Intent to Terminate


 the accreditation of Pacific Coast University School of


 Law on the basis of noncompliance with Accredited Law


 School Rule 4.160 and Guideline 12.1, which require all


 accredited law schools to maintain a minimum cumulative


 bar pass rate of at least 40 percent.


   The purpose of this hearing is to allow other


 evidence that will be used by the full Committee of Bar


 Examiners to make a determination as to whether the


 school is in compliance with the Accredited Law School


 Rules along with the other material and discussion that


 has already been provided.


   Because that is the sole question that will be


 presented to the full committee based on this hearing


 and because the only alleged noncompliance identified in


 the Notice of Intent is with Rule 4.160 and Guideline


 12.1, the only relevant evidence at this hearing will be


 evidence that speaks to the question of whether Pacific


 Coast University is or is not in compliance with the


 minimum cumulative bar pass rate.


   Under Accredited Law School Rule 4.174(C), the


 school has the burden of demonstrating compliance and


 may represent any relevant evidence they choose,


 including -­

   The school is provided electronic copies of
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 exhibits in advance.  And all of those exhibits will be


 received by the panel and will be considered part of the


 record whether or not they are displayed or referenced


 directly during the hearing.


   If the school requests, staff will share any


 exhibit on the screen in the manner that the school


 directs.  The hearing will continue until 4:00 p.m.


 unless the school completes its presentation sooner.


   The panel is here to listen and receive


 evidence, but it will not be taking any questions at the


 hearing and will not be making a decision or formal


 recommendation today.


   Instead, at the next scheduled committee


 meeting, the panel will share its observations and


 submit exhibits.  Under Accredited Law School Rule


 40.17(A), it will be the full committee who will then


 make a determination as to whether or not the school is


 in compliance.


   Once that determination is made, the full


 committee will make its final determination regarding


 any potential action affecting the school's


 accreditation.  I will introduce the panel and ask the


 representatives of the school to introduce themselves.


   Would each panel member please identify or panel


 chair member, committee bar examiners, and chair of the
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 educational standards.


   Paul?  Paul, can you introduce yourself.


   MR. CHAN:  Paul, you're muted.


   MR. KRAMER:  Yeah, Paul Kramer, chairman of the


 examination subcommittee of the bar examiners.


   THE COURT:  Alex?


   MR. CHAN:  Sure, this is Alex Chan, chair of the


 operation and management subcommittee.  Also a member of


 the Committee of Bar Examiners.


   MR. LAWRENCE:  I believe the staff members


 present are Donna Hershowitz, the intermittent executor;


 Amy Nunez, director of admissions; Audrey Ching,


 assistant director of admissions and educational


 standards; Amber Aldridge, program analyst of


 educational standards; Ken Holloway, assistant general


 counsel representing the panel.


   At this point I will ask state bar staff to


 unmute the PCU representative and allow them to turn on


 their cameras.


   Would each representative of the school please


 introduce themselves and state who will be the lead from


 Pacific Coast University.


   MR. VALENTI:  Sure.  My name is Miguel Valenti.


 I'm the new dean of PCU.  I'm on the call myself.


 There's no one else on the call from our end.
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   And I wanted to first say thank you for taking


 the time to do this.  And it's nice to meet you all,


 with this terrible technology.


   You -- Mr. Chairperson, you phased out on me


 there three or four times.  But I got the gist of what


 you had to say.  But the call keeps freezing up.


   So if anybody has any trouble hearing me, please


 let me know.


   MR. LAWRENCE:  I apologize for that.  And yes,


 if I or anybody else needs to repeat, please don't


 hesitate to ask.


   So talking about -- I'd like to take a moment to


 describe the procedure for today as well as next steps.


 Pacific Coast University School of Law has provided


 written responses and public comment in response to the


 notices of noncompliance on this issue that the school


 received in 2015, 2018, and 2019, as well as a


 supplemental statement in advance of the school's


 inspection that took place on the topic in October 2020


 (sic).


   The school participated in a one-hour inspection


 in October.  Then in January 2020, the school provided


 additional written and verbal public comment.


   After that, additional written public comment


 was received prior to the committee's meeting in April
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 2020.  PCU also provided exhibits in connection with


 this hearing today and those have been distributed to us


 on the panel.


   The School requested today's hearing under the


 Accredited Law School Rules after the committee made a


 finding of noncompliance and issued a Notice of Intent


 to Terminate Accreditation to PCU to present to the


 panel.


   Due to the length of the hearing, we will take


 five-minute breaks at approximately -- a little bit


 after 2:00 p.m., since we started a little bit later,


 and then again at 3:00 p.m.  You can stay logged in


 during the break and just mute your microphone and turn


 off your camera.


   At this point I will turn the hearing over to


 the school via Dean Valenti.  So please, again, state


 your name and you may begin.


   Thank you, Dean.


   MR. VALENTI:  As I said, my name is Miguel


 Valenti.  I'm the new dean here.  A word or two about


 me, since I'm the new face.  I was a Yale undergrad and


 Yale law student in mergers and acquisitions at Sherman


 & Sterling and then at Skadden, Arps, which is really


 one of the crazier places on the face of the Earth.


   And then I ended up going into film producing in
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 a solo practice.  Following a couple of years of doing


 that, I wrote a book on ethics in entertainment, which


 is used in several film schools around the country. And


 I was asked to come in and create a film school in


 Arizona that -- that followed the book.


   Arizona is not California.  We can't compete -­

 the school could not compete with California schools, so


 we needed a niche.  And the niche was ethics.  So I've


 been teaching ethics for quite some time.


   From there, I went on to found -- I also, by the


 way, taught intellectual property and copyright at


 Arizona Law School.


   And then I went from there to Quinnipiac


 University, where I founded their West Coast campus.


 And I went from there to Otis College of Art and Design


 and created their entrepreneurship program.


   I'm -- for lack of a less clumsy way of putting


 it, I'm an academically turnaround expert.  I take


 either programs that don't exist and make them exist or


 programs that are faltering and need some kind of a fix.


 And of course, the latter is why I've come to PCU, to -­

 to turn it around.


   The -- the board here has realized the problems.


 And basically, everything is changing at this point.


 Entire top management has changed over.  And so I'm kind
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 of at the -- at the spearhead right now, which is why


 you're only talking to me.


   By the way, I'm sorry that I look so red in the


 camera.  I look like I've had a bottle of whiskey.  I


 decided to turn off the air-conditioning in my office


 and on the whole floor, because it's summertime.  So


 anyway, I'm a little overheated.  I apologize.


   You know, this -- this is not our first dance


 with the Bar, obviously.  So I don't really want to take


 three hours and retread all of the past.  It seems like


 it's a giant waste of your time.


   Are we technically in noncompliance at this


 moment?  Yes, we are.  That -- that is not a point for


 debate; it's an admission.  We are below the number we


 need to be at.


   What I wanted to talk about, though, is that


 when the last actual site inspection was done -- not the


 phone call in October, but the last actual site


 inspection -- the recommendation to the committee was


 that we have our next site inspection in five years.


 That would have been next year, 2021.


   Now, that -- by then we probably would have been


 in compliance.  It's because it's coming early -- to


 explain briefly.  We had two large classes come into


 this law school in 2015 and 2016.  They were brought in
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 by a dean who had special plans for these students, had


 a way that he wanted to do things, made lots of


 exceptions to the admissions rules.  And then sadly, he


 passed away.


   There were these two large classes.  And for


 whatever reason -- I wasn't here at the time.  I have no


 idea -- for whatever reason, those two classes were, I


 would say -- everyone tells me they were the two worst


 classes we've had ever.


   Now, the problem is, they were both large


 classes.  So that meant we had a denominator problem in


 figuring out our MPR.  We have a lot of students who did


 one of a couple things.  They either took the bar once


 or twice, failed it, and then never took it again, or


 they're continuing to try to take it, with the same


 results.


   If the timetable had run another year, we would


 have dropped the class of '15 from your five-year


 tentative administration calculation.  And we figured -­

 we've done some internals, based on who we have and


 playing with the numbers -- we would have been very


 close to 37 percent or maybe even a little more.  I


 realize that's still under the 40, but from where we are


 now, that would be a big jump for us.


   As you know, PCU, first of all, is very old.
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 It's been around since 1927, before the Bar, actually.


 And we cater to a very different kind of student than,


 for example, where I went to law school.  It isn't a


 bunch of -- of eager beavers who put their heart and


 soul into getting through law school, passing the bar,


 and starting a career.


   Most of our students are in very different life


 positions:  Single parents, senior citizens, poorer folk


 who can't afford standard tuition rates.  We are very


 inexpensive.  And, in fact, we're going to become less


 expensive, rather than more, in the next admission


 cycle.


   We are a school that tries to give people a home


 whom otherwise might not be able to find a way into the


 law.  There are a number of students with -- we have


 students with visual acuity problems, with all kinds of


 issues that might either keep them out of a more


 traditional law school or make them -- make that road


 much harder for them, let alone the costs.


   All right?  Our classes meet at night.  So


 people who have full-time jobs can still go to law


 school.  Several of them have other careers.  Not just


 jobs, but careers.  And they are, you know, able to do


 both and to better their lives and to move on.


   Now, some of them don't have any intention of
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 practicing law.  They are peace officers who want a


 promotion to detective at work.  Or they are working for


 a company where they deal with legal issues all the


 time.  For example, real estate.  We have doctors,


 believe it or not, who are not interested in going into


 medical malpractice.  They just want to know more about


 it.


   What that boils down to is that every semester a


 percentage of our students don't really prioritize the


 bar the way, for example, I did.  It isn't the be-all


 and end-all.  The be-all and end-all is the education.


 And for those using it for work purposes, it's the JD.


 That's what they need to move on to the next phase of


 their chosen career.  As I say, policemen.  We have some


 engineers.


   And then we have people who are English as a


 second language.  In one case, English as a third


 language.  We offer these people a home.  We offer them


 a way into the law.


   Now, the problem is that people at these stages


 of their lives, when they have families, jobs, other


 issues to deal with, they're not the same eager beavers,


 again, that I was 35 years ago.  The -- the okay, I'm


 going to study until my eyes bleed every single day


 between now and the bar exam, that doesn't happen for
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 them, because they have two kids or they have a career


 or whatever it might be.


   Also, in '15 and '16, when we had these large


 classes, we were coming out of a pretty awful economic


 time.  And a lot of our students decided that it would


 be safer for them to keep the jobs they had and use the


 degree to get a promotion and to make some more money


 rather than to look to change to become practicing


 lawyers at that time.


   So my -- my strong feeling is that we're turning


 this place around and we're turning it around pretty


 quickly.


   But there's no way -- with those two classes of


 '15 and '16, there's no way that we can get to


 40 percent this year.  We've gone up.  And, in fact, we


 haven't gone up a lot, but we've gone up two full


 percentage points during the pandemic, which I think


 really is a testament.  I wasn't here, so I can't take


 any credit.  But I think it's a testament to the


 people -- to the staff and the faculty who run this


 place.


   The transition to this technology and teaching


 our classes online and moving material online was done


 relatively seamlessly.  I was finishing up at Otis at


 the time.  And I have to tell you it was not nearly as
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 seamless.  They did it here very, very well.


   And what we've done is, we've pulled apart all


 the best practices from moving online and we're going to


 use it to inform our teaching moving forward, whether or


 not we continue to use Zoom as a delivery method.  If


 the pandemic ends, we've still learned a lot of very


 valuable lessons about how to best communicate content


 to students and how to reinforce what they're learning.


   We're going to be putting a lot of things


 online.  And we're going to make sure that students have


 access to more material than they've had in the past.


   We're basically in existence from the very


 earliest days to provide equal opportunity.  That's -­

 that was the purpose that the founders had in mind, to


 give a law school education and a way into the legal


 world to people who wouldn't have otherwise had it.


 Okay?  And we followed that all the way along.


   Our tuition is extremely low.  And as I say,


 it's going to go down, actually, rather than up.  And


 all of our classes are at night.  I mentioned that.


   Now, I came here both because they had a problem


 to solve, which is the MPR, and they -- I liked their


 approach.  It's sort of a -- if I were in an art school,


 it would be for me, the equivalent of a conservatory


 approach.
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   And I really -- I do like that.  I like the fact


 that there's a tremendous amount of faculty-student


 contact.  I like the fact that there are personal


 touches everywhere.  The students are made to feel like


 family.


   Now, I know this all seems like background that


 you don't need or already have.  But I just want to put


 it on the record so that -- so that I've done so.  We're


 a different kind of school.


   Now, obviously, we have to follow the rules that


 you all set.  I'm not suggesting for a minute that we


 don't.  And if that's the only issue, then okay.  You


 know, we're not -- we're not special in the sense that


 we don't have to live by the Bar Association's


 decisions.  Of course we do.


   The thing that I'm saying is that I think the


 school is being responsive to the concerns.  After the


 last physical inspection, real inspection, not the


 telephone call in October, there were a number of


 physical premises issues that needed to be fixed.  You


 all recommended a number of things.  They were terrific


 ideas.  They've all been done.  The physical plant is


 different now than -- than when you were here.


   We're trying to do the same thing with


 academics.  We've got all-new administrators coming in.
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 And we're going to make some structural changes.  One of


 the things that's happened here is, decisions had been


 made a little bit like this, right?  (Indicating.)  And


 what it's done is, it's taken away from our ability to


 focus on the academics and focus on the Bar.  So we're


 making some changes.


   The first is, we right now have a two-track


 system, two separate enrollments.  One group enrolls in


 September, one group enrolls in December.  From my audit


 of the files, notes, statistics, paperwork, everything


 else, that is a confusing nightmare.


   So what we're going to do, we're going to honor


 our promise to the incoming classes, assuming we have


 them, and we are going to change over to a single-track


 system on a normal schedule of September start.  That's


 one thing.  That will allow us much greater


 concentration on the students rather than trying to


 juggle the logistics of a rolling process twice a year.


 It also gives us the summer months to better our


 programs, institute new programs, try new things.


   The other thing is, everybody's going in for


 more training, faculty and administration alike.  We are


 going to be starting that very soon.  As I said, we


 are -- also, we learned a lot from coronavirus.  We're


 going to do some things differently and provide a much
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 richer online world for our students.  They won't take


 classes online once this crazy thing ends, but they'll


 have resources online that dwarf what they have


 available to them now.


   We have our partnership with Barbary. That


 begins basically the minute a student walks in our door


 as a 1L.  We have Barbary at our initial orientations.


 And they -- the students work with Barbary M.  And they


 work with Barbary all the way through.  And a portion of


 their tuition goes toward paying Barbary so that when a


 student has graduated and is going to take the bar, they


 don't have to pay for the Barbary review course.  It's


 already been paid for.


   And in the meantime, they've had use of all of


 the multistate materials, all of the essay materials and


 direct access to Barbary tools.  So that's something


 that the prior dean started a year ago.  And we're far


 enough into it now that I know exactly what we need to


 do to make it work really, really well.


   And the students are loving it.  They think


 that's a great way for them to not just study for law


 school, graduate, and then think, oh, now I have to


 study for the bar.  This is a way for them to combine


 their studies and be more on target in what they're


 doing.
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   We're instituting several new peer-to-peer


 learning programs.  We are going to use the old


 hackneyed concept of the study group, and we're going to


 turn it around a little bit.  We're going to provide


 teasers and contests and challenges for study groups.


 And we're going to create an -- sort of an air of


 everybody working together to solve these problems. And


 the professors are going to supervise this.  And it's


 going to allow students to work through far more in the


 way of essays and MB questions and all of that.


   The other thing that we're doing is, as far as


 teaching goes -- I -- I come from a background where


 teaching is everything.  Teaching is the Number 1


 priority at this school from now until I'm forced to


 leave or whatever happens, happens.  But as long as I'm


 here, teaching is the Number 1 priority.


   I'm going through every word that has ever been


 said about any of our professors.  And we're going to


 make sure that additional training is provided,


 additional resources are provided.  Faculty will be


 meeting with me probably every two to three weeks while


 we get started.


   Their responsibilities to keep up with what's


 going on in their particular fields are spelled out


 very, very clearly in contracts and handbooks and
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 faculty guides and all of that.  So that's -- we're


 going to put a real emphasis on that.


   We're also going to institute a mentorship


 program.  All of our current students are going to have


 a faculty mentor, and they're going to have an alumni


 mentor.


   Now, what I want to do as far as -- excuse me.


 Very hot in here -- what I want to do as far as the


 students who've already graduated, who have not been as


 successful with taking the bar exam, is I'm going to


 assign each of them a mentor as well.  And they're going


 to work with somebody to prep and to really focus on


 passing the bar.


   And if they choose not to pass the bar, then -­

 then we'll have that discussion -- I mean, not to take


 the bar, we'll have that discussion too.


   I'm also instituting a speaker series.  And


 we're expanding our number of alumni events.  Because we


 find that our best referrals for admissions come from


 alums.  And the best guidance given to our students


 sometimes comes from alums as well.  So we're going to


 increase the presence of alums on campus.


   But anybody still in the CBX pipeline will


 receive a mentor.  We have an event here every year for


 alumni who did not pass the bar to come in and get a
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 refresher course.  But what we've discovered in the


 comments is that some of them are embarrassed, for lack


 of a better way to put it.  They don't really want to


 walk into a room where all of the current students and


 faculty who are around the school say, ah, they're in


 that room.  That means they didn't pass the bar.


   So rather than relying solely on that -- we're


 going to do that for the students who aren't


 embarrassed, but I'm going to send a tutor out to them


 for all the ones that are.  And they never have to admit


 anything.  They just get help with passing the exam.


   The -- we're tightening up the professor


 evaluation process.  First of all, we're going to


 make -- we're going to redo the student evaluation form


 and make sure that it is taken seriously, which I'm not


 convinced it always was in the past.


   Every professor will be peer-reviewed during the


 term at least once and also reviewed by me.  I will sit


 in on their class at least once.  They will do a midterm


 checkup, which will be an online checkup.  It'll be in


 writing.  It'll go into the file, but it will be a


 little bit more -- this is what I think, you know, I


 could use more of or less of.  It's more of sort of a


 gut check in the middle of the semester.  And then


 they'll do their written -- final written evaluations at
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 the end.


   All evaluations will be audited for every


 professor every year at the end of whatever course it is


 that they're teaching.


   And now, I'm sure you know this already from the


 prior dean, but we're now using the same ExamSoft


 program that the Bar uses, Examplify and ExamSoft, so


 that we can better correlate the questions that we're


 asking and the answers that we're getting.


   We can get the exams back faster, and we can get


 the exams back with additional data that allows us to


 actually not simply say to a student, eh, you didn't do


 very well.  This will give us a chance to break it down


 and explain why and suggest remedial measures when


 they're necessary.  And all of this is being put in


 place for the coming academic year.


   Just a couple more things, and then I will shut


 up. The -- we're going to revamp -- they have a


 one-credit course now on legal analysis and law school.


 We're going to revamp that and turn it into a writing


 seminar for first year, and it's going to be required.


   And we are going to put elements of it into


 second and third year as well so that they're going -­

 the students are going to get writing classes required


 of them all of the first three years.
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   And in 4L, we're going to try to change the


 scheduling of the curriculum to create a hole where we


 do the final writing class.  And what that will be is a


 summary of the kinds of things they've learned in the


 first three classes.  And then they will do exercises in


 issue-spotting and in how to write a really persuasive


 legal document.


   So writing is going to become our big new


 academic thing here.  My contention, having talked to a


 number of students, is, it isn't -- it isn't usually how


 much law you know that gets you through the bar exam,


 it's how well can you spot the issues and how well can


 you write your answer.  And we want to make sure that we


 give them every minute of training in those skills as we


 possibly can.


   We're also going to institute a -- sort of a -­

 I hate to use the word track again, because it's


 confusing, but a two-track system.  When students know


 that they have no interest in going into practice, yes,


 they have the right to take the bar exam, certainly.


 But some of them don't even want to do that.  They feel


 pressured into doing it.


   Those students, as far as I'm concerned,


 assuming that it doesn't violate one of your rules -­

 and I've read through.  And if it does -- I'm not aware
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 of it yet -- what we'd like to do is, the students who


 are not interested in practice and not interested in


 taking the bar, we won't devote the review resources to


 them.  We'll concentrate on the other students, which


 will give us more of a targeted audience.


   The -- the students in question would get the


 entire -- the exact same education.  The only thing they


 wouldn't get are the review sessions.  And it would be a


 decision that they could reverse.  If they see all of


 their friends in their class are going to take the bar


 exam and they suddenly decide they want to take the bar


 exam, we'll arrange it.  We'll give them the review


 training, and we'll let them do that.


   But we know that three to four students every


 incoming class have no intention of practicing and


 they're only taking the bar exam because they think they


 have to.  So I'd like to give them a choice.


   Now, if that does violate something from you


 all -- I haven't had enough time to go through


 absolutely every rule and reg -- we won't do it,


 obviously.  But if we can, we will.


   We instituted -- about a year and a half ago the


 school instituted a required Saturday lab for which they


 charged an additional tuition.  What we discovered after


 running it a couple of times is that it is not an
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 efficient way to do this.


   So the new plan -- what we're going to do is,


 we're going to take the same lab content, which is both


 multistate questions and essays, and we're going to have


 the students do these right before their class.  We have


 proctors lined up so the professors don't have to come


 in early to do it.  The professors will work with me to


 come up with the questions.  And the students will come


 in for a drill prior to every class.  I explain that in


 the -- in the documents that I submitted to the


 committee.


   My thought is -- well, I have a number of


 thoughts.  But anybody who works full-time, the last


 thing -- if they're coming in Monday, Wednesday, and


 Friday nights, the last thing they want to hear from you


 is, you have to come in Saturday afternoon as well. If


 you work, it's hard to get that time off.  If you have a


 family, you don't want to give up a Saturday.  None of


 that is as important as becoming a good lawyer, but what


 it does is, it weakens their concentration.


   I want to do it on a night that they know


 they're coming in anyway.  They're geared up for class.


 They're geared up for work.  They come in, and we get


 them when they're fresh.  And we use that instead of a


 three-hour thing on Saturday afternoon where 45 minutes
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 is spent, you know, wandering around or not focused on


 what you're doing.  So we're going to put that into


 place.


   At some point -- and this is way down the line,


 because obviously we have a bigger hurdle to jump with


 you all right now -- but at some point down the line, we


 would like to talk about and prepare for putting in


 place some sort of professional law degree.  Either an


 MLS, if we can do it, or an executive JD or whatever the


 form -- the preferred form is of the committee at the


 time when we're able to do it.


   That's just a future plan so that we can


 continue to serve both our "I want to practice" audience


 and our "I don't want to practice ever" audience.


   All right.  So next thing, we are going to start


 instituting a broader range of electives.  I always


 found in law school that -- you know, I didn't expect


 it, but oftentimes I learned more about the law by


 taking an elective than I did by taking the required


 course.  So I want to get some electives on board that


 students are really interested in, that will teach them


 the skills that -- that will translate to the bar exam,


 but whose underlying subject matter they'll prefer.


   Anything from entertainment law to real estate


 and the law to medical malpractice.  Almost anything.
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 And we're looking around now for people who can teach


 those.


   I want to broaden the range of internships,


 externships, and pro bono that we do.  We're going to be


 starting that immediately after this process is


 complete.  I'd like to create -- and I've already mapped


 out what, for lack of a better term, because I haven't


 come up with a good buzz name yet -- a return to school


 for alums.  It's something that I know that Cal Northern


 does.


   And their description is interesting.  For the


 first three to four years when you're out as a junior


 associate, you're learning where the men's room is and


 you're learning how to draft documents and you're


 learning how to do whatever it is that the partner on


 your deal wants you to learn how to do.


   But after about five years, there comes a need


 at some point, which just happened to a friend of mine,


 where someone walks into your office and says, okay,


 what about new business?  Are you going to be able to


 bring in new business?  I don't know too many law


 students who come out knowing how to bring in new


 business.


   So what I'd like to do is, five years out, I'd


 like to bring our alums back and run a workshop seminar
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 on the skills that will take them into the second half


 of their law firm associate career.  Reviewing the first


 half and then showing them the second half.  And we


 would bring in, obviously, experts from the Bar and from


 local practice to teach that.


   I've talked about Barbary already.


   We had a program that we started last year, I


 believe, and we're going to increase it, where we raise


 some money and we give grants to our graduates for child


 care when they're studying for the bar.  One of the


 biggest problems we've heard about from our last, let's


 say, two classes is, hey, once school's over, terrific.


 I've still got these two kids.  I can't really spend the


 six or eight hours a day I want to spend to study for


 the bar, because I've got two kids and I'm a single


 mother.  What do I do?


   So we found that if, in giving small grants to


 people to pay for child care, their -- their ability to


 put the time in goes way up.  So we're going to look to


 do more of that.


   We're also going to look at merit scholarships


 and other grants, things like that.


   We are going to raise our admissions standards.


 And I'm going through that right now.  I want to get a


 picture of basically every student who's been admitted
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 to this school in the last five years, and then I want


 to look at exactly how we're going to do it in the


 future.


   We have some terrific students that are coming


 in now.  One's a senior engineer.  One's -- you know,


 these people have incredible resumés.  And I sort of


 wonder, you know, why they're suddenly going to law


 school, but I think it's great.  But I want to get


 everything on paper.  I want to come up with very firm


 admissions guidelines and processes.  And that's being


 done now.


   One thing that -- oh, we want to increase career


 counseling.  I'm going to bring in somebody to do that.


 And we're going to make sure that people don't pass from


 level to level just because they can breathe. We're


 going to pay very serious attention to any student with


 a subpar grade or failing grade.  We're not going to


 shove them through the system.


   I should tell you that I have the Board of


 Directors' financial and authorities support for all of


 these programs.  We're going to be moving forward great


 guns to do this stuff.


   Two or three things.  I would very much like us


 to be able to have a different relationship with you


 all.  Going back through the files, it seems to me
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 that -- I don't know how many years ago, maybe 15, 16,


 17 -- it turns adversarial.  And I'm not sure why.  I'm


 not sure what happened.  But I don't like it.  I think


 that we're a better school if we work with you.  And I


 see no reason for us to be on opposite sides of the


 fence.


   And we'll do our part to -- to bring ourselves


 to the point where you're, you know, you're proud of us.


 And we'll work with you in any and every way that you


 suggest.


   The other thing is, I want to make PCU more a


 part of the community.  I want to bring more of the


 community to the students and more of the students to


 the community.  So we're going to institute some things


 that will allow students to believe that it's more than


 just a place where they come to sit and study.  We're


 talking about bringing in groups or speakers from women


 in the law and arts and entertainment and, you know,


 doing events and even -- somebody even suggested a legal


 dance.  But we'll figure out the specifics.


   But we want our students to feel at home with


 us. I have a great staff.  The -- the staff is -- they


 know all the students by name.  They know their back


 histories.  They spend a lot of time with them.  So once


 we get the new top-level administrators in place, then I
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 think we'll be in a great position to really create a


 nice world for our students.


   So that brings me around to where I started,


 which is, are we out of compliance?  Yes, we are.  Are


 we far out of compliance?  Well, this year, yes.


 Projected for next year, 37 percent, maybe 38, not so


 far.


   So here's -- here's the only position that I can


 reasonably take.  Because I know from all the


 documentation and from hearing you speak, I know, you


 know, how you feel about these things.  I -- the only


 thing I'm asking is, if there would be any consideration


 for giving us at least the time we thought we would have


 had, which is till next fall, the other two


 administrations.  If we could have till 2021, that


 changes the denominator.


   If the passage rate doesn't significantly


 improve by then, we'll pull the plug.  But I would ask


 just for a consideration to give us some time.  I'm not


 asking for years.  I know that's been done here before.


 You've seen tears.  You've seen all kinds of arguments.


 I'm not really asking for that.


   I'm asking to have a chance to turn this around


 without my first six months, seven months at this school


 being used to explain why we lost the accreditation.
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   You know, this school survived 75 years without


 it. But you know how it is.  You get something like


 this.  And when you lose it, it seems like a much


 greater hole than before you ever had it.  And I think


 that it will damage us with our students.  It will


 certainly damage us with our faculty.


   And I feel powerless at that point, because


 instead of dealing with all of these changes that I want


 to make, I'm explaining.  And I'm -- I guess, as I say,


 I'm asking for -- asking you to give me a bit of time,


 not a lot, a bit of time for me to pull the rest of this


 together and then schedule another call or site visit.


   And then make your decision and we'll live with


 it, whatever it is.  That's -- that's the substance of


 my request, is just, let me get my feet on the ground.


 Let me get this stuff turned around.  Let me get on a


 single track with the students so that we can focus on


 each and every one of them.  And we're not dealing with


 crazy logistics.


   And I can promise you that the bar rate will go


 up next year.  I can't promise it will hit 40.  But I


 can promise we'll get an awful lot closer than we are


 now if you're willing to give us that chance.


   MR. LAWRENCE:  Thank you, Dean Valenti.


   And at this point I want to open up to the other
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 panel members if they have any questions for you.  And I


 hope they don't mind if I ask the first one.


   Can you just explain -- you mentioned the


 two-track system as well as you talked about new


 administration coming in.


   Can you talk about sort of the motivations,


 specifically about going from two tracks to one.  And


 then what specific new administration goals are you


 looking at?


   MR. VALENTI:  Okay, sure.  All right.  So first,


 the two-track idea.


   This seemed to come not -- I'm reading back


 through the files.  It seemed to come not from a


 conscious decision of, we need two tracks of students to


 service everyone that's interested.


   What seemed to happen was that the school was


 requiring a very large upfront payment on tuition.  And


 the tuition included the $3,000 for the mandatory lab.


   The time of year, for a number of our students,


 it was very difficult paying during the summertime or at


 the end of summer, having to come up with a large sum of


 money.


   So someone here thought of the idea of, well,


 maybe we give them longer to pay the bill and we simply


 start a second class when they can pay that bill.
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   Now, on the face of it, I understand why they


 did that.  They didn't want to send away students who


 would be great students except for the fact that they


 didn't have $5,000 that they could peel loose in one


 shot to sign up.  A lot of us can't do that.


   But I don't think they thought through the


 consequences.  And the consequences are two sets of


 faculty, two sets of staff to take care of certain


 things.  Constant confusion as to -- okay, it -- I don't


 know if you remember the movie.  But If It's Tuesday,


 This Must Be Belgium.  It was, like, if it's Tuesday,


 this must be track 2.


   And it got to the point where it's not serving


 our interests and it's not serving students' interests.


 So what we're going to do instead is change the payment


 terms.  We're reducing the tuition a little bit, and


 we're going to ask all the students start at the same


 time.


   That allows the administration to focus on one


 group, on one schedule, like most normal law schools.  I


 mean, there was no way I could start Yale Law School in


 January.  That wasn't going to happen.  You either went


 or you didn't go.


   If we lose a couple of students in doing so but


 it raises our overall performance, I think it's well
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 worth it, and so does the Board.  And so that's the


 idea, is to put everybody on, quote/unquote, normal law


 school schedule so we have one set of admissions instead


 of two.


   I mean, basically, the staff here is working


 year-round, because as soon as they get rid of one


 session and get it enrolled, then they got to do the


 next one.  So we're going to back off that.


   I want to use the summertimes to be productive


 and create new things.  I don't want to use it to push


 paperwork of that kind.


   As far as the staffing, we're currently -- what


 I want to get in place as immediately as I can -- and


 I'm working on it -- is the dean of students. That


 person will help me with all of the academic


 requirements and will keep -- I don't want to say ride


 herd, because it makes it sound bad somehow, but they'll


 ride herd on the whole Barbary partnership and how the


 students are accessing that information and to make sure


 that they are accessing that information.


   I intend to meet with every student three times


 per semester.  That's already being scheduled.  But I'd


 like a dean of students to be able to do that as well.


   We have our treasurer in place.  I'm going to


 promote from inside at least one associate dean.  And
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 eventually, meaning as the next round of hires, I'd like


 to look for a career counseling position.


   There are lots of other positions I'd like to


 fill as well.  But we're a small school with small


 classes.  And even though the Board has said that money


 is not an issue, I don't yet need five deans.  You know,


 it's -- we're not at that point yet.  I want to keep the


 administration lean.  But I want to fill these roles


 that need to be filled.


   Okay.  So -- and then we have our staff.  We


 have an executive director, who's great.  We have


 assistants.  You know, so that will be the new -- the


 new staff going into the fall.


   MR. LAWRENCE:  Thank you.


   And at this time the other panel members, please


 state your name before you ask your question.


   MR. CHAN:  Sure.  This is Alex Chan again.


 Thank you, Dean Valenti.  I am the chair of the


 operation and management subcommittee.


   Can you inform the panel and remind the panel


 how many incoming students are you expecting for the


 fall and how many students you'll have in total as of


 this fall.


   MR. VALENTI:  Okay.  Let me get -- I need to get


 you the exact statistics.  I'm putting out a little help
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 message, because they're still working on those


 documents.  So let me get you that and maybe go on with


 another question.  And then I'll come back when I get


 the figures in here.


   MR. CHAN:  Sure.


   Another question I have -- and I'm sorry if


 somehow I misunderstood earlier when you were talking


 about the passage rates.  I think at one point you


 mentioned that you had a vision or you had a mission to


 making sure that you would meet the minimum passage rate


 that we have, which is 40 percent.


   So by next fall, I think at one point you said


 you would be able to meet that.  But then I think in


 another part of your message, you seemed to communicate


 that you could get very close to it, like, 30-something


 percent threshold, but you wouldn't be able to meet the


 40 percent


   So I just wanted you to clarify exactly what


 your position is in terms of meeting that passage rate.


   MR. VALENTI:  Yes, yes, absolutely.  I -- I know


 I was a little -- a little more vague about that than I


 should have been.


   So here is the situation for us.  Right now -­

 right now we are way below the passage rate, as you


 know, or we wouldn't be on this phone call.  And so our
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 2018 figures were 26.2 percent.  That's with a


 denominator of 145, numerator of 38.


   Then we jumped a little bit in '19 to 26.6. And


 during the whole pandemic fun and games we jumped


 2 percent to 28.2.


   Now, what we've done is, we have projected for


 2021, conservatively projected a 37 percent MPR.  It's


 conservative because -­

   How many -- 1L?  25 in total?  Okay.  Thanks.


   By the way, I just -- sorry to disappear like


 that.  I just got your answer on the other question.  25


 incoming.  I knew it was between 20 and 28.  But I


 didn't want to give you the wrong figure.  25.  And, you


 know, some of that -- one or two of that may -- you


 know, there may be some kind of COVID fallout on that.


 But that is the number we have slated right now.


   Back to the MPR, we're projecting 37.4 percent


 for 2021.  If -- if we get the chance to move forward


 with the plans that we have, I think we can beat that.


 That's the -- that is what our accountants are telling


 me. But I think we could be at 38 or 39.


   Whether we can hit exactly 40, it will depend on


 a number of things.  I think it's very possible.  But I


 can't give you an ironclad guarantee, which is why I was


 saying that if we got close, we could have this
 

39
 



REPORTER'S TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS

 
  
 

  
       

  
       

  
 

  
 

  
       

  
 

  
       

  
 

  
 

  
 

  
       

  
       

  
 

  
       

  
       

  
 

  
       

  
 

  
 

  
       

  
       

  
 

  
       

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

 conversation again and you could decide, well, close


 isn't good enough.


   MR. CHAN:  Thank you, Dean.


   Another question I have is that your projections


 perhaps is that -- let's say roughly 38 percent for the


 next administration.


   How long would it take, in your opinion, to meet


 the five-year average of 40 percent passage rate?


   MR. VALENTI:  That would require the 2015 class


 and 2016 class to both fall off the bottom of the five


 years.  So I would say latest would be the first


 administration of 2022.


   MR. CHAN:  Would that be fall or spring of 2022?


   MR. VALENTI:  I want to say spring of 2022. If


 not spring, then certainly by fall.


   MR. CHAN:  Thank you, Dean.


   One more question.  Again, just to follow on my


 previous question.


   How many other students are currently at the


 school, not counting the incoming ones, but just the


 4Ls, 3Ls, and 2Ls?


   MR. VALENTI:  I believe it is 35.


   MR. CHAN:  35 plus the incoming 25, so we're


 looking at roughly 60 students; is my math correct?


   MR. VALENTI:  Yes, yes, I believe that's right.
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 I'm going to double-check that number as well.  Yeah,


 that's about right.  We don't want to go above that


 number.  We don't want to expand too quickly.  We want


 to keep the classes small and, you know...


   Total students, not counting the 1Ls this year,


 both -- coming back -- all years except the 1Ls, except


 the 25.  Ah, I was wrong.  I'm sorry.


   About 125, 130.


   MR. CHAN:  Okay.  So including incoming, we're


 looking at about 150-plus students?


   MR. VALENTI:  Yes, correct.  Right around 150,


 yeah.


   MR. CHAN:  Now, earlier you talked about some of


 your students, you know, enrolling that have no intent


 to take the bar exam versus those students who have


 every intent to take the bar exam.


   MR. VALENTI:  Yeah.


   MR. CHAN:  How do you differentiate who would be


 taking the exam and who won't be when you enroll those


 students?


   MR. VALENTI:  Well, I think that is counseling


 that will happen with each and every student as they are


 matriculating.  And they will be told that they are not


 locked into that decision.


   But for example, I've already spoken with an
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 incoming student who is a peace officer.  And he wants


 the JD because he wants to be a detective.  He said, I'm


 not leaving the force.  I'm going to put in my 20 and -­

 and, you know, that's it.  So I'm not going to practice


 law.  But I can use the JD.


   So if it's -- if the person is that decided,


 then the counseling will be easy.  If they're not, we'll


 discuss it with them.  We'll let the student -- and we


 will check back with them probably once a semester.


 I'll keep a list.  And once a semester we'll check back


 with them to determine whether they made the right


 choice for themselves.  And as I say, they can always


 reverse the choice.  That's up to them.


   MR. CHAN:  Thank you.


   I have no further questions.


   MR. KRAMER:  This is Paul Kramer.  I've got one


 question for you.


   I'm -- just to be clear -- make sure we have a


 clear record, when you were speaking about 37 percent


 next year, I had assumed that you were speaking about


 the MPR.  But then in response to Alex Chan's question,


 it sounded as if you were speaking about the passing


 rate on the particular bar exam next year.


   MR. VALENTI:  No, no, no.  I'm talking about the


 MPR.
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   MR. KRAMER:  Okay.  Good.  Then I understood you


 right the first time.  Thank you.  That's all I have.


   MR. VALENTI:  Oh, all right.


   MR. LAWRENCE:  Dean Valenti -- again, this is


 Alex Lawrence.  The calculations that you mentioned


 earlier, have you or do you mind, say, at the end of


 this meeting or after today, actually, providing those


 calculations -­

   MR. VALENTI:  Not at all.


   MR. LAWRENCE:  -- that you have been -- okay.


   MR. VALENTI:  The summaries of them are in the


 documents that I sent over.  I'll just get the person


 who did the mathematic to send you the formula.


   MR. LAWRENCE:  Great.  And actually, I just have


 possibly just one more question, talking again about the


 class size reduction and you mentioning that you


 anticipate the reduction in the tuition.


   Again, is that -- can you just talk a little bit


 more about the reduction in the tuition a little bit


 more.


   MR. VALENTI:  Yes, absolutely.  Absolutely.


   The consensus amongst the students and the


 faculty was that the required $3,000 Saturday lab wasn't


 what the school hoped it would be.  All right?  So as I


 said, we're going to revamp that and put it into the
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 times that our regular curriculum meets and all of that.


   What that means is, we're taking a portion of


 that $3,000 off the tuition.  Probably 2,000 of it. And


 we'll -- the other 1,000 would be for the administrative


 costs of -- of handling the review sessions.


   So student tuition should drop to anywhere -­

 right now it's at 11-5.  And it should drop to anywhere


 between 9 -- between 9 and 10 by the time we're done.


 And we're one of the few schools I know that's actually


 dropping tuition.  Everyplace -- my son, who's 17, is


 looking to go to college -- is going the other


 direction.


   But we want to make this a doable thing.  And


 the more -- more grant money we raise -- we're going to


 try to help people even with that level.


   But -- so I would say you're looking at 9 -- 9


 to 10, probably closer to 9.


   MR. LAWRENCE:  Thank you.


   MR. VALENTI:  You're welcome.


   MR. LAWRENCE:  So I believe we've come to the


 conclusion unless Alex Chan or Paul Kramer have any


 additional questions.


   I want to thank you, Dean Valenti, and the


 Pacific Coast University School of Law for your


 participation in this hearing.
 

44
 



REPORTER'S TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS

       
  
 

  
 

  
 

  
       

  
 

  
       

  
       

  
                         

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

   A transcript of the hearing and all exhibits


 will be provided to the committee to be considered with


 the other information received to date on this matter at


 its next meeting.


   I want to also thank the panel and staff and


 court reporter for their time.


   This concludes today's hearing.  Thank you.


   (Proceedings concluded at 2:17.)


  --o0o-­
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Sonia Gomez 


From: Kristine Castro Twomey <kris2mey@yahoo.com> 

Sent: Monday, May 25, 2020 5:36 PM 

To: Sonia Gomez 

Subject: Re: letter regarding the mentorship you helped with Taylor Anderson 

As a Professor at Pacific Coast University (PCU), I have mentored many students. One particular 
student success comes to mind, Taylor Anderson. Taylor was a diligent student and earned the top 
grade in my Wills and Trusts course. We stayed in touch during her time at PCU and after, as she 
studied for the bar exam. Taylor passed the bar exam on her first attempt, after which we met for 
breakfast to celebrate. We discussed ideas about the type of law she was interested in. Taylor told 
me her passions, and knowing her academic strengths, I suggested she would be an amazing City 
Attorney. I then reached out to Long Beach City Attorney and PCU graduate Charles Parkin. Charlie 
met with Taylor for an informational interview and explained what the City Attorney's office does on a 
daily basis. The City Attorney could not hire a new attorney without at least a year of working 
experience, per their city regulations, but he was able to offer Taylor an internship. Taylor worked as 
an intern for one year and then was hired as a Long Beach, Deputy City Attorney. Taylor has since 
been instrumental in forging city governance for the City of Long Beach. Taylor's success was the 
result of hard work, determination, and networking with PCU alumni and professors. 

Sincerely, Kristine Twomey 
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